

Affordable Housing Committee

Meeting No. 5 **Contact** Patsy Morris, Committee

Administrator

Meeting Date Tuesday, November 13, 2007 Phone 416-392-9151

Start Time 9:30 AM E-mail pmorris@toronto.ca

Location Committee Room 2, City Hall

Attendance

Members of the Affordable Housing Committee were present for some or all of the time periods indicated under the section headed "Meeting Session", which appears at the end of the Minutes.

Councillor Giorgio Mammoliti	X
Councillor Adrian Heaps	X
Councillor Pam McConnell	-
Councillor Howard Moscoe	X
Councillor Cesar Palacio	X
Councillor Adam Vaughan	X

On motion by Councillor Moscoe the Affordable Housing Committee adopted the Minutes of the meeting held on June 14, 2007.

AH5.1	ACTION	Received		Ward: All
-------	--------	----------	--	-----------

Housing Opportunities Toronto – Affordable Housing Framework 2008 – 2018

(October 30, 2007) Report from Sue Corke, Deputy City Manager

Recommendation

That this report be received for information.

Financial Impact

There are no direct financial implications from this report. Resources to conduct the consultation process are provided within the Affordable Housing Office.

The Deputy City Manager and Chief Financial Officer has reviewed this report and agrees with the financial impact information.

The City of Toronto has released for public review and engagement Housing Opportunities Toronto – An Affordable Housing Framework 2008 – 2018.

This report sets out the highlights of Housing Opportunities Toronto and the public consultation process to be undertaken over the next four to six months. Upon the completion of the consultation, further research and intergovernmental discussion, city officials will draft a long-term Affordable Housing Plan for consideration by the Affordable Housing Committee and Council in 2008.

Decision Advice and Other Information

The Affordable Housing Committee:

1. referred the following motion by Councillor Palacio, to Deputy City Manage Sue Corke for consideration: (Motion by Councillor Mammoliti)

Moved by Councillor Palacio:

"That the Affordable Housing Committee recommend to the Executive Committee and Council that as part of the consultation framework that local Community Councils be directed to hold public meetings with all stakeholders in order to enhance public engagement, including private sector, co-operative, charitable and non-profit sectors like Habitat for Humanity; and Members of Council be canvassed to provide names and contacts of community groups, tenants associations, BIA's, Co-ops etc." and

2. received, for information, the report (October 30, 2007) from Deputy City Manager, Sue Corke. (Motion by Councillor Mammoliti)

Deputy City Manager Sue Corke and the Director of Partnerships delivered a presentation to the Affordable Housing Committee respecting the Housing Opportunities Toronto - An Affordable Housing Framework 2008 - 2018, and filed a copy of their presentation material.

Links to Background Information

Housing Opportunities Toronto Affordable Housing Framework 2008 - 2018 (http://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2007/ah/bgrd/backgroundfile-8053.pdf)
Housing Opportunities Toronto Affordable Housing Framework - Booklet (http://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2007/ah/bgrd/backgroundfile-8272.pdf

AH5.2	ACTION	Amended		Ward: 14, 30, 32	
-------	--------	---------	--	------------------	--

Affordable Housing – Funding Recommendations Request for Proposals 9155-07-7200 for the Development of Transitional Housing and Supportive Housing

(October 31, 2007) Report from the Deputy City Manager and the Director, Purchasing and Materials Management

Recommendations

The Deputy City Manager and Director of Purchasing and Materials Management recommend that City Council:

- 1. Approve the following supportive housing and transitional housing projects selected through the RFP subject to the City successfully signing an agreement with the federal government for the administration of the Homelessness Partnership Initiative funding:
 - a. Alternative Living Solutions Inc. at 1908 Gerrard Street East;
 - b. Parkdale United Church Foundation Incorporated at 1355 King Street West;
 - c. WoodGreen Community Housing Inc. at 650 Queen Street East;
- 2. Grant authority to exempt the listed projects from taxation for municipal and school purposes for the term of the municipal capital facility agreement;
- 3. Grant authority for exempting all projects, not subject to a waiver under the *Development Charges Act*, from payment of development fees and charges;
- 4. Grant authority to designate the listed projects to qualify as social housing allowing all or part of the project relief from normal parking standards;
- 5. Approve \$240,000 in funding from the Capital Revolving Fund as a grant to be allocated to Parkdale United Church Foundation for its transitional housing project at 1339 King Street West;
- 6. Approve the establishment of a Contingency Fund of \$500,000 to be drawn from the Homeless Partnership Initiative transitional and supportive housing funds;
- 7. Authorize and direct the General Manager, Shelter Support and Housing Administration on behalf of the City, to approve use of the Contingency Fund under the criteria set out in Appendix 2 and if use of the contingency funds is approved, the General Manager, Shelter Support and Housing Administration be granted authority to execute on behalf of the City an agreement to amend the municipal capital facility agreement for the project receiving contingency funds to reflect the increase in funding.

- 8. Grant authority for the City to enter into a municipal capital facility agreement and such other agreements, security and other documents deemed necessary, with the proponents of each of the projects, set out in the foregoing recommendations or to another entity associated and controlled by it and acceptable to the Director of Affordable Housing Development to provide for the development and operation of supportive housing and transitional housing, on such terms and conditions as the Director Affordable Housing Development and the General Manager, Shelter, Support and Housing Administration, considers appropriate and in a form approved by the City Solicitor; and
- 9. Authorize and direct the Director, Affordable Housing Office Development, on behalf of the City, to execute municipal capital facility agreements and all other agreements and documents deemed necessary to give effect to all other recommendations in this report, on terms and conditions satisfactory to the Director, Affordable Housing Development and the General Manager, Shelter, Support and Housing Administration and in a form approved by the City Solicitor.

Financial Impact

The funding sources to build the 68 units (3 projects) recommended in this report for a total of \$11,797,990 are set out below and detailed in Appendix 1. Access to Homelessness Partnership Initiative funding is contingent on the successful signing of an agreement with the federal government, anticipated to be in place effective January 1, 2008.

Direct capital assistance for the construction of the 68 units from all orders of government is:

Government Assistance Capital

Homelessness Partnership Initiative (HPI) Contribution	\$8,209,000
Capital Revolving Fund Contribution	\$ 240,000
Minimum Expected GST and PST Rebates	\$ 293,220
Municipal Development Charges and Planning Fees at current rates	\$ 337,770
TOTAL	\$9,079,990

Private equity and mortgage financing to be obtained is set out below:

Proponent Capital Contributions

Minimum Proponent Equity	\$1,718,000
Minimum First Mortgage Financing	\$1,000,000
TOTAL	\$2,718,000

The only operating assistance will be property tax exemptions for the twenty five years of the term of the Contribution Agreements at a total net present value of \$666,973 for the three projects. No rent supplements are being provided by the City to any of the projects.

Funding from the Capital Revolving Fund for the Parkdale United Church Foundation "Shalom House" transitional housing project will be provided as a grant by way of forgiveable loan in the amount of \$240,000. The Capital Revolving Fund for Affordable Housing projects has an uncommitted balance of \$13.5 M available.

The detailed budget implications (including 2008 budget adjustments) for the 2008-2010 year will be reported to the Budget Committee early in 2008 and any 2009-2010 budget year implications associated with these projects will be reported and included in the 2009-2010 year program budgets as developments proceed and funds are advanced. There is no City contribution/commitment required for development beyond what is recommended in this report.

The Deputy City Manager and Chief Financial Officer has reviewed this report and agrees with the financial impact information.

Summary

This report recommends approval of \$8,209,000 in federal Homelessness Partnership Initiative funding for the development of 3 transitional and supportive housing projects. These three projects will result in 68 new affordable homes for people who have experienced homelessness in the City of Toronto. The developments were selected from proposals submitted in response to a Request for Proposals ("RFP") issued by the City. It also recommends the establishment of a Contingency Fund in the amount of \$500,000 to be funded from Homelessness Partnership Initiative.

Federal capital funding is from the Homelessness Partnership Initiative (HPI), a program that provides resources to communities across Canada to address and alleviate homelessness. In order to acquire the funding, the City of Toronto must sign an agreement with the federal government for HPI, anticipated to be in place effective January 1, 2008. City of Toronto support is in accordance with existing affordable housing policies and programs. This report recommends that the City administer the projects for a period of 25 years. Contributions from the City include waiver of development fees and charges, and exemption from property taxes. There will be no net costs to the City.

This report also recommends approval of \$240,000 from the City of Toronto Capital Revolving Fund (CRF) as a grant for the completion of Parkdale United Church Foundation's "Shalom House", a transitional and supportive housing project, the majority of the previous funding was funded under the predecessor program to HPI, the Supporting Communities Partnership Initiative (SCPI).

Committee Recommendations

The Affordable Housing Committee:

- A. recommended to the Executive Committee that City Council:
 - 1. Approve the following supportive housing and transitional housing projects selected through the RFP subject to the City successfully signing an agreement with the federal government for the administration of the Homelessness Partnership Initiative funding: (Motion by Councillor Palacio)
 - a. Parkdale United Church Foundation Incorporated at 1355 King Street West; (Motion by Councillor Palacio)

- b. Wood Green Community Housing Inc. at 650 Queen Street East; (Motion by Councillor Palacio)
- 2. Grant authority to exempt the listed projects from taxation for municipal and school purposes for the term of the municipal capital facility agreement;
- 3. Grant authority for exempting all projects, not subject to a waiver under the Development Charges Act, from payment of development fees and charges;
- 4. Grant authority to designate the listed projects to qualify as social housing allowing all or part of the project relief from normal parking standards;
- 5. Approve \$240,000 in funding from the Capital Revolving Fund as a grant to be allocated to Parkdale United Church Foundation for its transitional housing project at 1339 King Street West;
- 6. Approve the establishment of a Contingency Fund of \$500,000 to be drawn from the Homeless Partnership Initiative transitional and supportive housing funds; and
- 7. Authorize and direct the General Manager, Shelter Support and Housing Administration on behalf of the City, to approve use of the Contingency Fund under the criteria set out in Appendix 2 and if use of the contingency funds is approved, the General Manager, Shelter Support and Housing Administration be granted authority to execute on behalf of the City an agreement to amend the municipal capital facility agreement for the project receiving contingency funds to reflect the increase in funding.
- 8. Grant authority for the City to enter into a municipal capital facility agreement and such other agreements, security and other documents deemed necessary, with the proponents of each of the projects, set out in the foregoing recommendations or to another entity associated and controlled by it and acceptable to the Director of Affordable Housing Development to provide for the development and operation of supportive housing and transitional housing, on such terms and conditions as the Director Affordable Housing Development and the General Manager, Shelter, Support and Housing Administration, considers appropriate and in a form approved by the City Solicitor;
- 9. Authorize and direct the Director, Affordable Housing Office Development, on behalf of the City, to execute municipal capital facility agreements and all other agreements and documents deemed necessary to give effect to all other recommendations in this report, on terms and conditions satisfactory to the Director, Affordable Housing Development and the General Manager, Shelter, Support and Housing Administration and in a form approved by the City Solicitor; and

- B. submitted to the Executive Committee and City Council, without recommendation, the following Recommendation 1. a. contained in the report (October 31, 2007) from the Deputy City Manager and the Director, Purchasing and Materials management:
 - "1. Approve the following supportive housing and transitional housing project selected through the RFP subject to the City successfully signing an agreement with the federal government for the administration of the Homelessness Partnership Initiative funding:
 - a. Alternative Living Solutions Inc. at 1908 Gerrard Street East;".Councillor Mammoliti)

Decision Advice and Other Information

The Affordable Housing Committee:

- 1. directed staff in the Affordable Housing Office to hold an open house meeting, as soon as possible, with respect to the proposed project at 1908 Gerrard Street East, and report directly to Council for its meeting scheduled to be held on December 12, 2007, on the outcome of the public consultation meeting; and (**Motion by Councillor Palacio**)
- 2. directed that in future, staff put in place a creative solution so that both the Ward Councillor and the community have an opportunity to review these proposals before they are submitted to Committee for consideration. (Motion by Councillor Palacio)

Motion by Councillor Palacio which was carried on the following recorded vote:

For: Councillors Mammoliti, Moscoe, Palacio, Vaughan

Against: 0

Absent: Councillors McConnell, Heaps

The Director of Development, Affordable Housing Office and the Manager of Housing Development, Affordable Housing Office, delivered a presentation to the Affordable Housing Committee with respect to the Request for Proposals for the Development of Transitional Housing and Supportive Housing.

Links to Background Information

Affordable Housing - Funding Recommendations Request for Proposals 9155-07-7200 for the Development of Transitional Housing and Supportive Housing (http://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2007/ah/bgrd/backgroundfile-8048.pdf)

2a Affordable Housing – Funding Recommendations Request for Proposals 9155-07-7200 for the Development of Transitional Housing and Supportive Housing

(November 9, 2007) Memo from Ms. Karen Eden and Mr. David Collins advising that they are in opposition to the proposed development of transitional and supportive housing for 1908 Gerrard Street East.

2b Redevelopment Proposal for 1908 Gerrard Street East

(November 9, 2007) Letter from Mr. Gary Staunton

Summary

(November 9, 2007) Letter from Mr. Gary Staunton advising that he has just been informed by a neighbor that there is a meeting of the Affordable Housing Committee on Tuesday, November 13 that includes the proposal for re development of the building at 1908 Gerrard St. East into city housing for 29 "Homeless individuals experiencing mental illness"; and stating that no notification to the neighborhood concerning this proposal was given and that he is requesting that the meeting be postponed until all concerned and interested can have an input into this project.

Communications

(November 9, 2007) letter from Mr. Gary Staunton (AH.Supp) (http://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2007/ah/comm/communicationfile-4548.pdf)

2c 1908 Gerrard Street East

(November 11, 2007) Letter from Mr. Juergen Hoffman

Summary

(November 11, 2007) Letter from Mr. Juergen Hoffman advising that he has just been made aware that a meeting will be held on Tuesday Nov 13, 2007, respecting the property located at 1908 Gerrard Street East; that he owns a property a few doors away and that this is the first that he has heard about this; and querying if notice is required, and that it would be prudent and advisable to defer consideration of this matter until such proper notice has been given.

Communications

(November 11, 2007) letter from Mr. Juergen Hoffman (AH.Supp) (http://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2007/ah/comm/communicationfile-4551.pdf)

2d Affordable Housing - Funding Recommendations Request for Proposal 9155-07-7200 for the Development of Transitional Housing and Supportive Housing

(November 13, 2007) Letter from Councillor Sandra Bussin, Council Speaker

Summary

(November 13, 2007) Letter from Councillor Sandra Bussin, Council Speaker, advising that because of significant neighbourhood concern expressed to her office about the absence of public consultation regarding the development of 29 publicly funded supportive housing units at 1908 Gerrard Street East; that the Affordable Housing Committee defer consideration of this project until its next scheduled meeting.

Communications

(November 13, 2007) letter from Councillor Sandra Bussin, Council Speaker (AH.Supp.AH05-2d)

(http://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2007/ah/comm/communicationfile-4546.pdf)

2e Affordable Housing - Funding Recommendations Request for Proposals 9155-07-7200 for the Development of Transitional Housing and Supportive Housing

(November 13, 2007) Letter from Ms. Anna Cancelliere and Mr. Robert Benson

Summary

(November 13, 2007) Letter from Ms. Anna Cancelliere and Mr. Robert Benson advising that they are residents of the area and are concerned with respect to the proposed project at 1908 Gerrard Street East.

Communications

(November 13, 2007) letter from Ms. Anna Cancelliere and Mr. Robert Benson (AH.Supp)

2f Affordable Housing

(November 12, 2007) Letter from Mr. Anthony Samotus, ACMA, Broker of Record Portland Realty Corporation Ltd.

Summary

(November 12, 2007) Letter from Mr. Anthony Samotus, ACMA, Broker of Record Portland Realty Corporation Ltd., advising that he is in agreement with what the City is trying to do and commending the City on its transparency and candour.

Communications

(November 12, 2007) letter from Mr. Anthony Samotus, ACMA, Broker of Record Portland Realty Corporation Ltd. (AH.Supp)

2g 1908 Gerrard Street East

(November 12, 2007) Letter from Mr. Andrew and Mrs. Jacky Arminen

Summary

(November 12, 2007) Letter from Mr. Andrew and Mrs. Jacky Arminen advising that they were made unaware of the Affordable Housing Committee meeting and are opposed to the proposal.

Communications

(November 12, 2007) letter from Mr. Andrew and Mrs. Jacky Arminen (AH.Supp)

2h 1908 Gerrard Street East

(November 12, 2007) Letter from Mr. Andrew Arminen

Summary

(November 12, 2007) Letter from Mr. Andrew Arminen advising that he has strong concerns relative to the development of the project located at 1908 Gerrard Street East.

Communications

(November 12, 2007) letter from Mr. Andrew Arminen (AH.Supp)

2i Affordable Housing Committee

(November 12, 2007) Letter from Mr. Robert Brant

Summary

(November 12, 2007) Letter from Mr. Robert Brant writing in opposition to the proposed project at 1908 Gerrard Street East.

Communications

(November 12, 2007) letter from Mr. Robert Brant (AH.Supp)

2j Proposed Initiative at 1908 Gerrard Street East

(November 12, 2007) Letter from Mr. John and Mrs. Robin McAleer

Summary

(November 12, 2007) Letter from Mr. John McAleer and Mrs. Robin McAleer advising that they are opposed to the proposed housing project at 1908 Gerrard Street East.

Communications

(November 12, 2007) letter from Mr. John and Mrs. Robin McAleer (AH.Supp)

2k 1908 Gerrard Street East Development Comments

(November 12, 2007) Letter from Mr. Antony and Mrs. Lyanne Upward

Summary

(November 12, 2007) Letter from Mr. Antony and Mrs. Lyanne Upward advising that they are reiterating the comments of Ms. Karen Eden and that they would rather see a mixed income development than what is proposed for the proposed project at 1908 Gerrard Street East.

Communications

(November 12, 2007) letter from Mr. Antony and Mrs. Lyanne Upward (AH.Supp)

21 Affordable Housing Committee

(November 12, 2007) Letter from Mr. Adrian Wyld

Summary

(November 12, 2007) Letter from Mr. Adrian Wyld advising that he has young children and that there are seniors in the neighbourhoods; and that he is concerned about security and property values.

Communications

(November 12, 2007) letter from Mr. Adrian Wyld (AH.Supp)

2m Affordable Housing Committee

(November 12, 2007) Letter from Mr. Tomas Tan

(November 12, 2007) Letter from Mr. Tomas Tan advising that he would like to block this proposal as he is strongly against it and so are many of his neighbours.

Communications

(November 12, 2007) letter from Mr. Tomas Tan (AH.Supp)

2n Alternative Living Solutions Inc./Houselink Community Homes

(November 12, 2007) Letter from Mr. Garnet Smith

Summary

(November 12, 2007) letter from Garnet Smith on behalf of Joanne, Owen and Emma, in opposition to the proposed project at 1908 Gerrard Street East.

Communications

(November 12, 2007) letter from Garnet Smith on behalf of Joanne, Owen and Emma (AH.Supp)

20 Affordable Housing Committee

(November 13, 2007) Letter from Mr. Doug Evans

Summary

Letter (November 13, 2007) from Doug Evans writing in opposition to the plan for housing development proposed for the location at 1908 Gerrard Street.

Communications

(November 13, 2007) letter from Mr. Doug Evans (AH.Supp)

2p 1908 Gerrard Street

(November 13, 2007) Letter from Ms. Julie Tuer

Summary

Letter (November 13, 2007) from Julie Tuer writing in opposition to the proposed development at 1908 Gerrard Street East.

Communications

(November 13, 2007) letter from Ms. Julie Tuer (AH.Supp)

2q Proposed Development at 1908 Gerrard Street East

(November 12, 2007) Letter from Lori Collinge

Summary

Letter (November 12, 2007) from Lori Collinge writing in opposition to the development at 1908 Gerrard Street East.

Communications

(November 13, 2007) letter from Ms. Lori Collinge (AH.Supp)

2r Property at 1908 Gerrard Street East

(November 12, 2007) Letter from Ms. Bridget Collinge

Summary

Letter (November 12, 2007) from Bridget Collinge writing in opposition to the proposed development at 1908 Gerrard Street East.

Communications

(November 12, 2007) letter from Bridget Collinge (AH.Supp)

2s 1908 Gerrard Street East

(November 11, 2007) Letter from Ms. Erica Collinge

Summary

Letter (November 11, 2007) from Erica Collinge writing in opposition to the proposed development at 1908 Gerrard Street East.

Communications

(November 12, 2007) letter from Erica Collinge (AH.Supp)

2t Development on Gerrard Street East

Summary

Letter (November 12, 2007) from Paula Whitlock and Charles Lee writing in opposition to the proposed development at 1908 Gerrard Street East.

Communications

(November 11, 2007) letter from Paula Whitlock and Charles Lee (AH.Supp)

2u Proposal for 1908 Gerrard Street

Summary

Letter (November 13, 2007) from Paul Farrar and Mary Clarke advising that with respect to the proposed development at 1908 Gerrard Street East, Houselink may not have the track record to provide a violence free care facility that is safe for residents in their neighbourhood.

Communications

(November 12, 2007) letter from Paul Farrar and Mary Clarke (AH.Supp)

2v Proposed conversion of 1908 Gerrard Street East

Summary

Letter (November 12, 2007) from Roseanne S. Carrara writing in opposition to the proposed development at 1908 Gerrard Street East.

Communications

(November 13, 2007) letter from Roseanne S. Carrara (AH.Supp)

Speakers

- Ms. Kerri Lamont:
- Ms. Jill Tate;
- Anthony Samotus, ACMA, Broker of Record, Portland Realty Corporation Ltd., Brokerage;
- Mr. Sebastiano Luciano:
- Ms. Josa Lee;
- Mr. Fong Tsaur;
- Mr. Paul Dowling;
- Mr. Kenneth Birks;
- Mr. Paul Connelly;
- Mary Clarke;
- Peggy Birnberg, Executive Director, Houselink Community Homes;
- Mr. Noel Simpson, Executive Director, Regeneration House

- Councillor Sandra Bussin, Council Speaker, Ward 32 Beaches-East York
- Councillor Gord Perks, Ward 14 Parkdale-High Park

AH5.3	ACTION	Amended		Ward: All
-------	--------	---------	--	-----------

Canada-Ontario Affordable Housing Program: Revised Program Allocations

(October 30, 2007) Report from Sue Corke, Deputy City Manager

Recommendations

The Deputy City Manager for Affordable Housing Office recommends that:

- 1. Council approve Toronto's participation in the Canada-Ontario Affordable Housing Program (2003) Homeownership Component and authority be granted for the City to enter into the Service Manager's Administration Agreement with the Province of Ontario, to provide for the delivery of the Program by the City, on terms and conditions considered appropriate by the Director, Affordable Housing Development and in a form approved by the City Solicitor;
- 2. Council approve conversion of funding for 500 units from the Housing Allowance/Rent Supplement initiative, valued at approximately \$10.5 million, to capital funding for rental and supportive capital units and for homeownership loans under the Canada Ontario Affordable Housing Program Homeownership Component;
- 3. Council allocate \$2 million of the converted Housing Allowance/Rent Supplement initiative to Toronto Community Housing Corporation to provide for the delivery of 150 affordable homes to eligible homebuyers in Regent Park under the Affordable Homeownership Program, on such terms and conditions considered appropriate by the Director, Affordable Housing Development and in a form approved the City Solicitor;
- 4. Council allocate \$1,740,000 to Miziwe Biik Development Corporation to provide purchasing assistance to 100 eligible Aboriginal home buyers to be allocated from \$870,000 of the converted Housing Allowance/Rent Supplement initiative and authority be granted to enter into an agreement to subcontract the delivery of a further \$870,000 in assistance, to Miziwe Biik Development Corporation, under the Canada-Ontario Affordable Housing Program Home Ownership Component, on such terms and conditions satisfactory to the Director, Affordable Housing Development and in a form satisfactory to the City Solicitor;
- 5. Council approve the transfer of the balance of the converted Housing Allowance/Rent Supplement initiative of approximately \$7,630,000 to the Capital Revolving Fund for Affordable Housing to provide capital support for future rental and supportive housing projects approved by Council;

- 6. Council confirm that 179 units of home ownership funding, allocated to the City under the Canada-Ontario Affordable Housing Program Home Ownership Component, be deployed by the Province directly with Council's request that these units be delivered to eligible households in Toronto;
- 7. the Director, Affordable Housing Development be authorized and directed to execute, on behalf of the City, all agreements referred to in recommendations 1, 3, and 4, and such other documents and agreements deemed necessary to give effect to those recommendations in this report.
- 8. the General Manager of Shelter, Support and Housing Administration be authorized and directed, on behalf of the City, to execute any and all necessary agreements and documentation to effect the approved reallocation of HARS funding.

Financial Impact

In 2005 the Province of Ontario allocated \$37.8 million in funding to assist 1,800 households under the Housing Allowance/Rent Supplement Component of the Canada-Ontario Affordable Housing Program. In light of new program flexibilities this report is recommending \$2.87 million in federal/provincial funding be converted to the Homeownership Component of the Canada-Ontario Affordable Housing Program and the balance be converted to the Rental and Supportive capital component.

Furthermore in 2006 the Province of Ontario also allocated \$6.345 million in funding to assist 729 Toronto households purchase a home under the Homeownership Component of the Canada – Ontario Affordable Housing Program. At that time the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing designated funding for 300 of these units directly to Toronto Community Housing Corporation.

The remaining 429 units of assistance valued at \$3.734 million were left to the City of Toronto to decide whether to deliver. In 2006 Council decided that 100 units of assistance be designated to the Aboriginal community, thereby leaving 329 units to be deployed or returned to the Province for provincial delivery. This report recommends 150 units be retained for allocation while returning 179 units of funding.

Program funding to support the homeowner initiatives recommended in this report comes from the federal and provincial governments. The City of Toronto will benefit from receiving a prescribed administration fee.

Upon entering into a Service Manager Administration Agreement with the Province of Ontario the City of Toronto will receive an administration fee of \$25,000 for participating in the Homeownership Component of the Program and a another 1.3% of the amount of down payment assistance for each owner applicant. It is anticipated that the administration fee of \$25,000 will be received in early 2008. The City will be eligible for an additional \$26,260 in administration funding depending on whether there is full Program take-up.

The Deputy City Manager and Chief Financial Officer has reviewed this report and agrees with the financial impact information.

This report is a follow-up to the report on the Canada-Ontario Affordable Housing Program allocations considered by Toronto City Council at its meeting of October 26, 27, 28 and 31, 2005; June 27, 28 and 29, 2006; and, July 16, 17, and 19, 2007.

The Province has recently offered all Service Managers in Ontario, including the City of Toronto the opportunity to convert all or a portion of its uncommitted allocation of Affordable Housing Program (AHP) Housing Allowance/Rent Supplement (HARS) funds to an AHP capital component: either Rental and Supportive or Homeownership; and to return Homeownership allocations for Provincial redistribution. Further, a number of changes have been made to the Homeownership Component of the Affordable Housing Program, including the opportunity to invest additional federal/provincial funding resources.

This report recommends that the City of Toronto (a) reallocate a portion of provincial HARS funding to capital projects; (b) confirm Toronto's administration of the Homeownership Program; (c) confirm Canada-Ontario Affordable Housing Program funding to the Toronto Community Housing Corporation to assist new residents of Regent Park and also to Miziwe Biik Development Corporation to assist members of Toronto's Aboriginal community; and (d) return to the Province a portion of home ownership funding that the City is requesting they deploy directly in Toronto.

Specifically, it is recommended that Council support the re-deployment of \$2,870,000 from the HARSinitiative to TCHC to support the Regent Park homeownership program and Miziwe Biik Development Corporation to assist eligible Aboriginal households and the balance of \$7,630,000 million to future Rental and Supportive housing capital projects.

Committee Recommendations

The Affordable Housing Committee recommends that: (Motion by Councillor Moscoe)

- 1. Council approve Toronto's participation in the Canada-Ontario Affordable Housing Program (2003) Homeownership Component and authority be granted for the City to enter into the Service Manager's Administration Agreement with the Province of Ontario, to provide for the delivery of the Program by the City, on terms and conditions considered appropriate by the Director, Affordable Housing Development and in a form approved by the City Solicitor;
- 2. Council approve conversion of funding for 500 units from the Housing Allowance/Rent Supplement initiative, valued at approximately \$10.5 million, to capital funding for rental and supportive capital units and for homeownership loans under the Canada Ontario Affordable Housing Program Homeownership Component;
- 3. Council allocate \$2 million of the converted Housing Allowance/Rent Supplement initiative to Toronto Community Housing Corporation to provide for the delivery of 150 affordable homes to eligible homebuyers in Regent Park under the Affordable Homeownership Program, on such terms and conditions considered appropriate by the Director, Affordable Housing Development and in a form approved the City Solicitor;

- 4. Council allocate \$1,740,000 to Miziwe Biik Development Corporation to provide purchasing assistance to 100 eligible Aboriginal home buyers to be allocated from \$870,000 of the converted Housing Allowance/Rent Supplement initiative and authority be granted to enter into an agreement to subcontract the delivery of a further \$870,000 in assistance, to Miziwe Biik Development Corporation, under the Canada-Ontario Affordable Housing Program Home Ownership Component, on such terms and conditions satisfactory to the Director, Affordable Housing Development and in a form satisfactory to the City Solicitor;
- 5. Council approve the transfer of the balance of the converted Housing Allowance/Rent Supplement initiative of approximately \$7,630,000 to the Capital Revolving Fund for Affordable Housing to provide capital support for future rental and supportive housing projects approved by Council;
- 6. Council retain the remaining Home Ownership funding of \$1,378,300.00 from the Canada-Ontario Affordable Housing Program and request that the Director, Affordable Housing Development report back on the proposed allocation of these funds to affordable housing initiatives in Toronto. (Motion by Councillor Mammoliti)
- 7. the Director, Affordable Housing Development be authorized and directed to execute, on behalf of the City, all agreements referred to in recommendations 1, 3, and 4, and such other documents and agreements deemed necessary to give effect to those recommendations in this report.
- 8. the General Manager of Shelter, Support and Housing Administration be authorized and directed, on behalf of the City, to execute any and all necessary agreements and documentation to effect the approved reallocation of HARS funding.

Links to Background Information

Canada-Ontario Affordable Housing Program: Revised Program Allocations (http://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2007/ah/bgrd/backgroundfile-8049.pdf)

AH5.4	ACTION	Amended		
-------	--------	---------	--	--

Affordable Home Ownership Opportunity at 403 Keele Street

(November 7, 2007) Member Motion from Councillor Perks and Councillor Mammoliti

Recommendations

1. Authority be granted to calculate the development charges at the 2007 rate, and defer them in the amount of approximately \$3,200,000, on the whole of the 403 Keele Street project, for a period of up to ten years to assist in the delivery of up to 150 affordable ownership homes through deferred payment second mortgages, and which fees are to be repaid to the Capital Revolving Fund for Affordable Housing.

- 2. Authority be granted to allocate up to 150 forgivable mortgage loans from the Canada-Ontario Affordable Housing Program Homeownership Component to Home Ownership Alternatives Non-Profit Corporation, or such party or corporation as is deemed appropriate, for delivery of up to 150 eligible purchasers of affordable ownership housing at 403 Keele Street to a maximum of \$1,150,000.
- 3. Authority be granted for the City to enter into a contribution agreement with Home Ownership Alternatives Non-Profit Corporation or such other parties as the City deems appropriate, to provide for the deferral of development charges, under the *Development Charges Act*, 1997, for 644 units in a housing project to be developed at 403 Keele Street, thereby securing the repayment of the Development Charges and ensuring the availability of up to 150 of those units to lower income qualifying households, on terms and conditions determined by the Director Affordable Housing Development and in a form approved by the City Solicitor.
- 4. Authority be granted for the City to enter into a delivery agreement with Home Ownership Alternatives Non-Profit Corporation and/or such other parties as the City deems appropriate, for delivery and administration, by that corporation of a portion of the City's allocation under the Canada-Ontario Affordable Housing Program Homeownership Component, as provided for in the Service Manager's Administration Agreement entered into with the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing on terms and conditions determined by the Director Affordable Housing Development and in a form approved by the City Solicitor.
- 5. Authority be granted for the Director Affordable Housing Development to execute the contribution agreement and delivery agreement, and any other agreements for documents required to give effect to the foregoing, on behalf of the City.
- 6. As a condition of the approval for City support to the project that Home Ownership Alternatives Non-Profit Corporation be required to initially offer up to 150 affordable homes to eligible and interested households on Toronto's social housing waiting list.

While Toronto has been successful in facilitating the development and construction of affordable rental housing there have been few attempts to support families and individuals in purchasing their first homes. At the same time market conditions continue to put the price of purchasing further and further out of the reach of Toronto renters.

This Notice of Motion recommends Council provide financial support to assist up to 150 households in purchasing an affordable home in a new development ready to start at 403 Keele Street.

The proposed development involves the construction of 644 residential units at the site of a former Canadian Tire store located in the West Toronto Junction neighbourhood at Dundas West and Keele Street. The appropriate planning approvals were granted by Toronto City Council in 2002. The development of the site will result in the elimination of a derelict building and provide an economic and social lift to the local community and business in the West Toronto Junction revitalization area.

403 Keele Street is being developed by its owner, the Kintyre Co-operative Development Corporation, with Options for Homes as the development consultant. Home Ownership Alternatives Non-Profit Corporation is providing financial guarantees to support construction financing and is offering assistance in the form of deferred payment second mortgages to all purchasers. Home Ownership Alternatives Non-Profit Corporation has for the past nine years participated in the development of over 1,400 new lower cost homes in Toronto with a focus on serving first time buyers.

This Notice of Motion puts forward two forms of financial support from the City for 150 families and individuals. Both forms of financial support decrease the amount of the first mortgage needed to purchase the units by increasing the size of a deferred-payment second mortgage:

1. Deferral of Development Charges

Current Development Charges for the project's 644 units amount to \$3,200,000. This amount applied to the amount of the second mortgages of up to 150 units reduces the first mortgage required to purchase by an average of at least \$21,333. The funds are to be repaid on resale, discharge of the mortgage by the owner, or within 10 years by the Home Ownership Alternatives Non-Profit Corporation.

2. Canada-Ontario Affordable Housing Program - Homeownership Component funding in the amount of \$1,150,000.

The City of Toronto currently has an allocation of \$1,150,000 available from the Canada-Ontario Affordable Housing Program - Homeownership Component (AHP-HC). AHP-HC funding is delivered through second mortgages. Divided among the 150 households this will result in a further reduction of the first mortgage by an average of \$7,666.

It is proposed that Home Ownership Alternatives Non-Profit Corporation act under an administration agreement signed with the City in delivering the AHP-HC to the 150 purchasers. Home Ownership Alternatives Non-Profit Corporation has experience supporting the purchase of affordable ownership homes with funding from the AHP-HC.

The City assistance will allow up to 150 purchasers to pay the equivalent of, or less than, average market rent by unit type for their housing, including mortgage principal, interest, and taxes.

The Home Ownership Alternative Non-Profit Corporation is proposing to provide up to 150 affordable homes that would include approximately 20 bachelor apartments priced at \$100,960(cost price) per unit, 40 one bedroom apartments at \$120,717(cost price) per unit, 50 two bedroom apartments at \$148,575(cost price) per unit and 40 three bedroom apartments at \$175,580(cost price) per unit.

These prices are at or below those defined by the Toronto Official Plan as affordable.

Communications

(November 7, 2007) Member Motion from Councillor Perks and Councillor Mammoliti (AH.Main) (http://www.toronto.ca/legdocs/mmis/2007/ah/comm/communicationfile-4243.pdf)

Committee Recommendations

The Affordable Housing Committee recommended to the Executive Committee and Council that:

- 1. Authority be granted to calculate the development charges at the 2007, and defer them in the amount of approximately \$3,200,000 million, on the whole of the 403 Keele Street project, for a period of up to ten years to assist in the delivery of up to 150 affordable ownership homes through deferred second mortgages. The deferred Development Charges, when received, will be deposited into the relevant Development Charges Reserve Funds, in accordance with the provisions of the Development Charges Act, 1997; (Motion by Councillor Mammoliti)
- 2. Authority be granted to allocate up to 150 forgivable mortgage loans from the Canada-Ontario Affordable Housing Program Homeownership Component to Home Ownership Alternatives Non-Profit Corporation, or such party or corporation as is deemed appropriate, for delivery of up to 150 eligible purchasers of affordable ownership housing at 403 Keele Street to a maximum of \$1,150,000;
- 3. Authority be granted for the City to enter into a contribution agreement with Home Ownership Alternatives Non-Profit Corporation or such other parties as the City deems appropriate, to provide for the deferral of development charges, under the Development Charges Act, 1997, for 644 units in a housing project to be developed at 403 Keele Street, thereby securing the repayment of the Development Charges and ensuring the availability of up to 150 of those units to lower income qualifying households, on terms and conditions determined by the Director Affordable Housing Development and in a form approved by the City Solicitor;
- 4. Authority be granted for the City to enter into a delivery agreement with Home Ownership Alternatives Non-Profit Corporation and/or such other parties as the City deems appropriate, for delivery and administration, by that corporation of a portion of the City's allocation under the Canada-Ontario Affordable Housing Program Homeownership Component, as provided for in the Service Manager's Administration Agreement entered into with the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing on terms and conditions determined by the Director Affordable Housing Development and in a form approved by the City Solicitor;
- 5. Authority be granted for the Director Affordable Housing Development to execute the contribution agreement and delivery agreement, and any other agreements for documents required to give effect to the foregoing, on behalf of the City; and
- 6. As a condition of the approval for City support to the project that Home Ownership Alternatives Non-Profit Corporation be required to initially offer up to 150 affordable homes to eligible and interested households on Toronto's social housing waiting list.

Decision Advice and Other Information

The Affordable Housing Committee requested City Planning staff to submit to Council for its meeting to be held on December 12, 2007, the Section 37 Agreement which outlines the community's amenities allocated to the project at 403 Keele Street. (**Motion by Councillor Moscoe**)

AH5.5	Information	Received		
-------	-------------	----------	--	--

Briefing Note – Information Update on Fee/Charges Relief for Affordable Housing Projects

(October 23, 2007) by Kathleen Llewellyn-Thomas

Summary

Briefing Note submitted by the Affordable Housing Office providing information on Fee/Charges Relief for Affordable Housing Projects. The purpose of which is to is to outline the issues related to the exemption or waiving of City fees for services related to land use and development, but particularly for affordable housing projects. Staff have formed a working group under the leadership of Corporate Finance to develop a uniform policy for fee exemptions and related process controls and procedures which will be presented to Council for consideration. This policy will also complement a policy being developed by Financial Planning regarding a formal user fee charge policy.

Committee Recommendations

The Affordable Housing Committee received, for information, the Briefing Note submitted by the Affordable Housing Office providing information on Fee/Charges Relief for Affordable Housing Projects. (Motion by Councillor Palacio)

Motion

Introduce Briefing Note motion by Councillor Palacio (Carried)

Councillor Palacio moved that the Briefing Note (October 23, 2007) from Kathleen Llewellyn Thomas be introduced.

Meeting Sessions

Session Date	Session Type	Start Time	End Time	Public or Closed Session
2007-11-13	Morning	9:40 AM	11:30 AM	Public